ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 7, 2004
1: 10 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom Co-Chair
Representati ve Beverly Masek, Co-Chair
Representative Cheryll Heinze, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto

Representative Bob Lynn

Representative Kelly Wl f

Representative David CGuttenberg

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative N ck Stepovich
Representative Beth Kerttul a

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 309
"An Act prohibiting the rel ease of nonindi genous predatory
fish into public water.™

- MOVED CSHB 309( RES) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 395
"An Act relating to shallow natural gas leasing and the
regul ati on of shallow natural gas operations.”
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 309
SHORT TI TLE: PROHI BI T RELEASE OF PREDATORY FI SH
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) WOLF

05/08/03 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
05/08/03 (H) FSH, RES

05/16/03 (H) FSH AT 7:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

05/16/03 (H Heard & Held

05/16/03 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/22/04 (H) FSH AT 9:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/22/04 (H Moved CSHB 309(FSH) Qut of Conmittee

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- April 7, 2004



03/22/04 (H M NUTE(FSH)

03/24/04 (H) FSH RPT CS(FSH) NT 3DP 2NR
03/24/04 (H) DP. GARA, WLSON, SEATON, NR OGG,
03/24/04 (H GUTTENBERG

03/31/04 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
03/31/04 (H Heard & Held

03/31/04 (H M NUTE(RES)

04/01/04 (H) JUD REFERRAL ADDED AFTER RES
04/05/04 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
04/05/04 (H) Heard & Held

04/05/04 (H) M NUTE(RES)

04/07/04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 395

SHORT TITLE: SHALLOW NATURAL GAS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HARRI S

01/ 23/ 04
01/ 23/ 04
02/ 05/ 04
02/ 05/ 04
02/ 05/ 04
02/ 24/ 04
02/ 24/ 04
02/ 24/ 04
02/ 26/ 04
02/ 26/ 04
02/ 26/ 04
03/ 09/ 04
03/ 09/ 04
03/ 09/ 04
03/ 12/ 04
03/ 12/ 04
03/ 12/ 04
03/ 19/ 04
03/ 19/ 04
04/ 07/ 04

IIITITTITITIITITIIIZ

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

&G RES, JUD, FIN

Q&G AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

Heard & Held

M NUTE( O&G)

&G AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 124

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

&G AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 124

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

&G AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 124

Moved CSHB 395(0&G) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( O&G)

0%G RPT CS(0&G NT 1DP 3NR 1AM

DP: KOHRI NG NR ROKEBERG CRAWORD,
HOLM AM KERTTULA

RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

-- Meeting Canceled --

RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

Rl CK VANDERKCLK, St af f
to Representative John Harris
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau,

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Presented HB 395 on behalf

Representative Harris, sponsor.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- Apri |

7, 2004



ROBI N McLEAN
Sutton, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provided testinony on HB 395.

MYRL THOMPSON
Sutton, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provided testinony on HB 395.

KATELYN BALDW N
Wasil |l a, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 395.

MARK MYERS, Director

Division of Gl & Gas

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During bill hearing on HB 395,
provi ded informati on and answered questi ons.

M CHAEL O MEARA

Homer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 395 and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

JOHN NORMAN, Chai r nan

Al aska G| and Gas Conservation Conm ssion
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 395.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-19, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO CHAIR NANCY DAHLSTROM called the House Resources
Standing Committee neeting to order at 1:10 p.m
Represent ati ves Dahl st rom Masek, Gatto, Wl f, and
GQut t enberg wer e pr esent at t he cal | to order.
Representatives Heinze and Lynn arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 309- PROH BI T RELEASE OF PREDATORY FI SH

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM announced that the first order of
busi ness would be HOUSE BILL NO 309, "An Act prohibiting
the release of nonindigenous predatory fish into public
wat er. "

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 7, 2004



CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM cl arified that during the April 5, 2004
bill hearing an objection was mnmade and had not been
renmoved, so for procedural reasons the conmttee would
agai n address the issue.

Nunber 0110

COCHAIR MASEK noved to report CSHB 309, [Version 23-
LS1097\W Ut er nohl e, 3/ 24/ 04] out of commttee wth
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes, and asked for wunaninobus consent. There being no
objection, CSHB 309(RES) was reported out of the House
Resources Standing Committee.

[COCHAIR DAHLSTROM passed the gavel over to Co-Chair
Masek. ]

HB 395- SHALLOW NATURAL GAS

Nunber 0245

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the next order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 395, "An Act relating to shallow
natural gas |leasing and the regulation of shallow natural
gas operations.”

CO- CHAIR MASEK clarified that the House Resources Standing
Commttee had not been holding up [HB 395], but had been
waiting for alnmobst two weeks for the bill's sponsor to
provide the CS [commttee substitute] containing the
changes requested by the Departnent of Natural Resources
(DNR). She said the Division of Ol and Gas has indicated
that it is satisfied with the bill with a couple of snmall
changes, and noted that the changes are reflected in
Version J.

Number 0305

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS), |abeled 23-LS1314\J, Chenoweth, 4/6/04, as
the work draft. There being no objection, Version J was
before the committee.

CO CHAIR MASEK noted that testinony would be taken and the
bill would be held over.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2004



Nunber 0418

RI CK VANDERKOLK, Staff to Representative John Harris,
presented HB 395 on behalf of Representative Harris,
sponsor . M. VanderKol k indicated he would go through the
changes to CSHB 395( &G, and he renarked:

HB 395 is undergoing a fascinating journey, and
conceptually the sponsors have been after three
main  points. ... They've wanted to protect
property rights if some senblance of that to the
best of the legislature's ability, even under the
provisions set out in Article WVIII of the
[ Al aska] State Constitution

Gve the protection available for ... water
qual ity for bot h agricul tural and human
consunption purposes, and allows sone way to
ensure that public notice is absolutely done to
... the maxinmum that all residents understand
what is happening to their property, what the
| easing process is about, and what exactly can
take place for reasonable access and entry ... to
the property.

So that's the spirit in which ... [HB] 395 has
evol ved

MR.  VANDERKOLK said a great deal of collaboration and
research was the done wth the Aaska GOl and Gas
Conservation Comm ssion (AOGCC), the Departnent of Natura

Resour ces (DNR) t he Depart nent of Envi r onnment al

Conservation (DEC), constituents, and with the sponsors.
There was a concentrated effort to address all of the
concerns that people have. He explained that Section 1
deals with the shallow natural gas activity oversight by
AOCGCC, and a change was nade to alter the authority of the
AOGCC such that paragraph (1) prohibits the comm ssion from
issuing a permt if operations would involve producing gas
from an aquifer that serves as a source of drinking water
or for agricultural purposes, and a conditional prohibition
agai nst the reinjection of produced water. Par agr aph (2)
expands the authority of the <commssion to regulate
hydraulic fracturing associated with exploration for and
the disposal of wastes produced by those operations. He
said a new provision was added to Section 2 directing AOGCC
to initiate a public forum process to resolve, informally,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2004



matters of public heal t h, safety, wel f ar e, and
envi ronnment al conpl ai nts.

MR.  VANDERKOLK told the conmttee that Section 4 adds
provisions for interaction between a developer and a
surface owner, as defined in the new chapter in mneral
interests, only for activities not governed by the Al aska
Land Act of AS 38.05. Sections 5, 6, and 7, deal wth
changes to authorizing shallow natural gas |easing under AS
38. 05. 177. Section 5 anends requirenents of notice by
acknowl edging that the director should actually consider
public coment that my be received before executing a
| ease. He said substitution of "may" for "shall" alters
the scope of the director's authority where discretion can
be exercised, and noted that the intention is to nake it
| ess of an aut onat ed process.

Nunmber 0733

MR. VANDERKOLK explained that Section 6 adds a series of
additional requirenments to be inserted in a shallow natural
gas lease to include water well testing, appropriate
set backs for conpr essor stations, noi se mtigation
neasures, and surface restoration requirenents if the
surface is disturbed by exploration or devel opnent, which
woul d take place after the termnation of the |ease. He
said in instances in which an owner and a |essee cannot
reach agreenent for the |lessee's entry onto property to
explore and develop shallow natural gas and the |essee
seeks to post a bond to permt entry, the first anendnent
adds a further requirenent that the | essee denpbnstrate the
necessity to access the property. Sections 9 and 10 anend
the notice requirenents for activities wunder the Al aska

Land Act under AS 38.05. Section 11 inposes permt
requi renents that relate to operations resulting in
di sposal of waste naterials on state |land and water. M.
Vander Kol k explained that the anmendnent allows discharges
from coal bed nethane drilling to be covered under AS
46. 03.100. He remarked, "Previously, ... the discharge was

exenpted under the DEC, we've wanted to nmake sure that that
was covered as regul ated.”

MR.  VANDERKOLK said in terns of the maxinmum depth of
shal l ow natural gas recovery, Sections 3 and 13 set the
standard of recovery at 3,000 feet. Suggesting that there
has been sone inconsistency in statute, he said this is a
way to clarify it and set a benchmark naxi mum depth.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2004



Sections 14 and 15 elimnate provisions by which the
comm ssioner of DNR may approve a waiver of the |loca
pl anning authority approval and requirenents relating to
conpliance of |local ordinances and regulations, which is
covered in [Section 14], he explained. M. VanderKol k said
those are the fundanental changes of [CSHB 395( Q&G ] .

Number 0845

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG turned attention to Section 6,
and asked how [ paragraphs (2)-(5)] would be inpl enented.

MR. VANDERKOLK expl ained that the intention is to give nore
regul atory direction, as opposed to enshrining it because
it is recognized that local situations are going to be
relative to the matter. He pointed out that there is nore
direction in Section 6, subsection (f), paragraph (3),
which talks about the paraneters wused for determning
set backs, general <character of the l|and subject to the
| ease, the size of parcels, the size of the owner's parcel
and popul ation density. M. VanderKol k commented that sone
direction is provided for regulators to determ ne where to
pl ace [conpressor] stations. He remarked, "I think the
sanme inpression is given with the other points.”

Number 0990

ROBIN McLEAN testified. She nentioned that she is a nenber
of the Sutton Community Council, which has been follow ng
this issue very closely. M. MLean said [residents of the
Mat anuska- Susitna Valley] and Honer are very eager to see
sone legislation go forward. She turned attention to page
1, subparagraph (A), and suggested renoving the |anguage
"unless the conm ssion finds" because [residents] would
feel nore confortable if that prohibition was "witten
across the board.” M. MLean commented that she was happy
to see the 3,000-foot depth limtation put back in [HB
395], but would like to see water well testing for all the
wells in | eased areas. She remarked:

| know M. [John] Norman ... testified to this in
the ... [Senate Resources Standing Conmittee].
W'd like very much to see a specific statenent
that toxic fracturing fluids would be prohibited
in Alaska, and | know he testified sonmething to
the effect ... that AOGCC [Alaska QG| and Gas

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2004



Conservation Comm ssion] would be anenable to
t hat .

. | think it would be an easy fix that would
make a | ot of people happy since, apparently, the
i ndustry doesn't want to use toxic fracturing
material anynore. | don't see any reason why
that can't be added in. | really strongly
encour age that.

M5. MLEAN encouraged the comittee to keep the bil
novi ng, because [residents] would |like to see sonething get
signed by the governor this year which would protect
property owners. She remarked:

One thing | hope you guys do while you have Mark
Myers on the phone is ask him sone of the things
that ... DNR learned from the hundreds and
hundreds of people who cane from DNR neetings in
the Mat-Su and what the strong feelings of the
property owners are because it seens |like there's
a bit of a disconnect between the neasures that
are being inplenented in Juneau and what the

property owners actually want. So, he's a
resource; | know he canme to several of the DNR
wor kshops .. ..
Nunber 1260
MYRL THOWPSON testified. He noted that he had just
received a copy of the bill and had not had nuch tine to

reviewit. M. Thonpson renarked:

For Section 1, | don't like the ... word "unl ess”
the commssion finds that wll not adversely
affect. That doesn't do us a whole |ot of good.

The 3,000-foot has been in ... that's good

that that's in place of the 4,000 foot just
| ooking at it in the short anount of tinme that
| ve had.

In Section (6), under the water testing part,
sone of that |ooks pretty agreeable but | m ght
suggest that when you're testing each well under
[ paragraph (2), subparagraph (A)] for dissolved
content, I'm assumng that's total dissolved
solids ... including nmethane and water flow I

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2004



m ght want to add (indisc.) test for conductivity
al so. ... Under Section 7, the words "my", |
don't have a lot of faith in "my" anynore.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO i nt err upt ed.

CO CHAIR MASEK told Representative Gatto that he was out of
order. She said M. Thonpson is testifying and she would
recogni ze [Representative Gatto's question], but first |et
M . Thonpson finish giving his testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that he couldn't follow M.
Thonpson's testinony if he didn't provide the page and I|ine
nunbers for [the sections he was referring to].

CO CHAI R MASEK asked Representative Gatto to go through the
chair.

MR. THOVMPSON said he hoped the conmmttee would not nove the
bill and would take nore public testinony [at a |later
tine]. He acknow edged that there seened to be sone pretty
cl ear changes fromthe | ast version of the bill.

COCHAIR MASEK said the comittee would have another
hearing on the bill and [M. Thonpson] would have another
chance to testify. She noted that there had been many
commttee substitutes for the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO told M. Thonpson he thought it would
be easier for the conmittee to follow his testinmony if he
provided a page and |line nunber when referring to specific
sections of the bill.

MR THOVWPSON sai d he under st ood.
Number 1539

KATELYN BALDW N testified. She said she was [in Juneau]
with the Al aska Youth for Environnental Action, but the
testinony she was giving are her personal views. She said
she believes that there should be best interest findings
bef ore devel opnment begi ns because DNR favors best interest

findi ngs. Ms. Baldwin comented that best interest
findings are already done for traditional oil and gas
| eases. If the bill does pass, she told the conmttee she
hopes that s one factor that should definitely be
included. Ms. Baldwi n said she believes the bill is a good

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 7, 2004



avenue to pursue and is a really good attenpt to deal wth
comunity problens of water quality, public notice,
fragnenting fluid regulations, and noise mtigation.
However, she said she doesn't think it does enough. Vs
Baldwin told the nenbers that she would like to see the
repeal of HB 69 included in the bill, so that the
conm ssioner does not have the right to override |ocal
zoni ng regul ati ons.

M5. BALDWN said she is concerned about the reclamation of
an area after it has been devel oped, and would like to see
cl ear | anguage defining what will happen to the land after
it's been drilled upon. She said she thought DEC and DNR
should definitely have jurisdiction over their areas for
maki ng the regulations - DEC for water quality and DNR for
resources issues - because those [departnents] are
obviously the best suited to nake those crucial regulations
on the shallow natural gas drilling. M. Baldwin said this
bill needs to be a foundation for private property owner
rights and devel opnental regul ations. She added that she
was real excited about traveling to Juneau from Wasilla to
testify in person.

Nunber 1647

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF suggested that both federal and state
policies which are in place require guidelines and
paranmeters with respect to renedi ati on concerns.

V5. BALDW N replied that she does not see it in the bill
REPRESENTATI VE WOLF commented that he believes there are
agenci es that have procedures in place which address these

i ssues.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Ms. Baldwin if she attends
Wasi |l a Hi gh School.

VM5. BALDW N replied that she attends Col ony Hi gh School .

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if Ms. Baldwin is in Juneau as
part of a group.

V5. BALDW N replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked t he nane of the group.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- April 7, 2004



M5. BALDWN said she is wth the Alaska Youth for
Environnental Action which is participating in the civics
conservation summt.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO questioned whether her testinony is
based on her background with the group or if she had put
forth testinony on her own.

M5. BALDWN responded that she had done a lot of the
research on her own and these are her personal views on the
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he is happy to see that people
Ms. Baldwin's age are getting involved in the conmunity.

M5. BALDWN said she really appreciated [Representative
Gatto's coment].

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF pointed out that the [state and federal
procedures] he had been referring to are on page 6, |ines
9- 14.

Nunmber 1806

MARK MYERS, Director, Division of Gl & Gas, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR), testified in support of HB 395.
He remarked, "Qur other concern was neking sure that you
had | egislation that we both believe to be inplenented in
DNR s perspective, and | think DEC, DNR, and AOGCC also
believe that those wll be inplenented, so ... that's a
very inportant step, | think, for this legislation." He
noted that he believes the sponsor very accurately outlined
what the bill acconplishes. He said there are sone
significant new protections in the bill. There were a | ot
of areas which are already practiced by state agencies
either within the lease or "within our stipulations and
mtigation neasures or wthin our practices,” he comented.
M. Mers said that this bill would codify them nmake them
clear, and it's a good positive step. It elimnates sone
of the uncertainty people have, and addresses a broad |evel
of issues from surface owner rights to water quality
i ssues, he added. A significant new protection which is
currently not available in statute is the inplenentation of
protections for surface owners in bonding on nonstate
| ands, he pointed out.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2004



MR. MYERS said concerns were noted during [DNR s public]
process in the valley and all of the public conmments are
within DNR' s web site on oil and gas. He added that [DNR
al so had] a separate coal bed nethane workshop and people
are free to view the public comrents.

MR. MYERS said there were two mmjor concerns expressed in
t he wor kshops. One is the issue of the best interest
finding, which is addressed in HB 531 and which is
supported by DNR He commented that there is a nechani sm
to inplement it if the legislature would want to pursue
t hat avenue of approach, he added.

MR. MEYERS told the conmttee the second issue and the nore
contentious issue is that of buy backs. He expl ai ned that
there are a lot of people in the valley that would like the
shal |l ow gas | eases to be bought back. He pointed out that
he'd testified previously on nechanisns that mght be
enpl oyed in doing that, and what the fiscal costs would be.
He sunmmarized that the process of issuing |eases wthout a
best interest finding and the desire of people to see the
process start over with a buy back provision are the two
i ssues not addressed by HB 395.

Number 1977

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG referred to pages 5 and 6, and
coormented the he believes the renediation processes for
testing water, setbacks, and noise mtigation seem to be
pretty subjective. He asked what standard is currently in
pl ace, and how HB 395 changes them

MR. MYERS responded that there are no set standards wth
respect to water well testing. No standards are in place
which require a water well to be tested. He explained that
there are, however, objective standards which say water
wells within approximately a quarter mle radius around the
drill site have to be tested. He added that it is a new
standard that goes beyond existing practices. M. Mers
told the nenbers that those sane standards are being
addressed in the process in the valley in terns of noise
abat enent and set backs. He comented that the factors
listed her e are reasonabl e factors to consi der.
Furthernore, he explained that DNR al so put the requirenent
to allow setbacks and noise abatenment in its leases in
stipulations and mtigations mneasures. M. Mers shared
that [DNR] is aware of the issues. He renarked:

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- April 7, 2004



More typically, then actually you put those
standards up front that there that sonething that
is considered on a site-by-site basis when a
final operation's request were submtted. It's
quite clear from the process in the valley the
fol ks wanted nore certainty than that, so we are
novi ng t hrough.

MR. MYERS said [DNR] should have a draft report on the
process by next week. He comented that there are likely
to be recommendations on nore direct standards in terns of
depth limts and m ni mum setbacks. The departnent believes
that one size does not fit all and each individual case
needs to be looked at for the values involved, he

acknow edged. M. Mers remarked, "This |egislation does
cut out those values, value of the parcel, character of the
| and, et cetera.” He summarized that he believes that

standards give clear direction to DNR from the |egislature
on what shoul d be considered in future | eases.

Number 2110

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Mers if he sees a
difference between what has been said during the public
comment process and what is being said 1in [the
| egi sl ature].

MR MYERS renar ked:

| think there's several different arenas in which
the issue is being played out. The first thought
is obviously in the press - there's lot's of
stuff going around in the press. The second is
in our public process in the valley; we had five
wor kshops where we really in took all the
concerns of the residents in valley. The
wor kshops were specific to these various issues;
a lot of them are issues that are addressed in
this | egislation.

The goal was ... at the end of the day for the
comm ssioner to have fully heard all the public
concerns, to address it, and then look for
developing nore specific standards than were
currently in place. ... and we put the general
standards in place ... prior to the leasing in

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- April 7, 2004



stipulations and mtigation measures, but

quite clear it has nore specific managenent

enforceabl e guidelines and regulations, so
is a process to devel op that

The third is the legislative process. W at

it's
and
this

DNR

recognize the value of having a best interest
finding and actually having a nore organi zed way

of leasing than over-the-counter. It is

our

opinion that the over counter |easing has led to

approximately 60 percent of the |eases

bei ng

pi cked up on speculation by folks that typically

are involved or engaged in oil and
activities. It's led to leasing in areas
are nore densely popul ated than

gas
t hat
has

historically been |eased, although in sone cases

that's not true.

W have in other areas, but we' ve done

t hat

| easing after the best interest finding process
and the public process has been fully evolved. |
think again, that devel oped because the shall ow

gas leasing program was used in areas that
historically in larger area-w de sales but
had been shrunk back to the nore limted

interest finding and that led to (indisc.) in

wer e

t hey
best

the Wasilla-Sutton area, and down in the Honer

area, which has led to |l ots of conferences.

The third part ... I'mtrying to get

the concerns that were brought out because of
| egi sl ati on. There are certain areas that
We at

believe strongly need |egislative fixes.

at is

t he
we

DNR would like to see a bill like [HB] 531, which
goes back to a best interest finding conpetitive

nat ured program and the appropriate renedies.

It gives us a lot nore public input; it gives us
ability to nore custonmize the |easing program
and it gives the comm ssioner a better, stronger

bal ancing test and whether or not to issue
| eases. | think also in the long run the state
will receive nore incone off l|eases than it would

t hrough this over-the-counter program

MR. MYERS indicated there were sonme concerns and confusions

over the various bills.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14-

Apri |

7, 2004



Number 2290

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF turned attention to page 6, |ines 9-14,
and asked if there are standard procedures for renediation
during the operation.

MR MYERS replied that there are many avenues toward
[ renedi ation]. He explained that the first way is through
stipulations and mtigations set forth in the |ease. For
exanple, typically there are setbacks from fish bearing
streans and other types of habitat. The requirenent is to
use existing roads and infrastructure wherever possible, so
there's no allowance in the final operations for new roads
unless they're really proven to be needed, he told the

menbers. M. Mers said that the process includes a
comment period when the |andowner can cone in and weigh-in
on his or her concerns. He stated that DNR takes these
concerns very seriously in terms of noving facilities,
set backs, et cetera, in |ight of the [|andowner's

perspective and in mnimzing the surface inpact.
Nunmber 2358

MR. MYERS said other federal [and] state agencies have
st andar ds. For instance, the U S. Arny Corps of Engineers
requires a permt if wetlands are to be filled and requires
mtigation to the wetlands. He commented that DEC al so has
certain requirenents in terns of water discharges and the
i ssuance of permts. M. Mers noted that the whole
process is highly regulated. He said he thought one
[ msconception] is that the issuance of the lease is only
the first step and does not really [provide] the right to
do any activities on the | ease.

MR. MYERS said it is all permtted and regulated through
nuner ous agencies involved with the process, so it really
affect the size and shape of the devel opnent. He said
another issue is that if a developnment situation were to
occur, nore than likely it would involve unitization where
mul tiple producing |eases would be put together into a
coormon facility to mnimze the nunber of separate
facilities. He remarked:

One of the things that was learned early on in
the oil industry is that if you allow nme just to
go on regulating in terms of its production you

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- April 7, 2004



could see multiple duplicative facilities in the
sane area, so the surface inpact is increased.

So the wunitization - we limt those nunbers of
facilities to those where they need it and that
mnimzes the environnental i npact and

maxi m zes the economc return on the project, so
that's another way of access to use to mnimze
t he surface inpact.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF suggested that the activity of shallow
gas wells would not conprom se any current regul ations that
are in place.

MR. MYERS, noted that he was not 100 percent sure, said the
protections are there, but this bill adds sone additional
protections in terns of water testing and quantifying in a
nore precise way the standards used for setbacks, et

cetera. He said the legislation better defines the
interaction between the surface owner and the |essee. He
commented that there are sone clarifications, sone
additional standards, and sone additional testing and
mtigation requirenents in the bill, as well as

clarification of existing requirenents. M. Meyer said he
believes [the bill] "tightens up" the regulatory framework
that already exists, and added that the regulatory
framework still has a lot of protections in it. For
i nstance, the well design has to be approved by AOGCC, but
that's not the way to limt or nanage issues involving risk
of contam nati on. The "well casing program' ensures that
the well has nmultiple layers of casings of cenent that
protect the producing zone, which separates and isolates it
from any possible aquifers required for any reinjection of
wat er, for exanple.

MR. MYERS said sone of those [elenents] are in the bill and
sone are in standard practices. He said the only
substantive difference in the bill is simlar to the
coastal zone nanagenent programin that it is exenpted from
a coastal zone review. In coastal zone reviews there are
public processes involved, so developnent on shallow gas
| eases have one |less process. |In sonme areas the bill gives

additional protection not available in existing oil and gas
prograns, he summari zed.

Nunmber 2598

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- April 7, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO suggested that all people who drill
their owm water well should have it tested. He said he
knows of an entire subdivision that has arsenic in it's
wat er and suggested it is possible for an individual to
have arsenic in his/her water. Representative Gatto asked
if after drilling and production occurred, if a person had
an initial water well test and found heavy netals in the
water, would there be a way to connect that to any kind of
production occurring in the vicinity.

MR. MYERS suggested it would be nore appropriate for AOGCC
to address that issue. He renarked:

The geochem stry of the water - ... you'd have to
look to see if the contamnants - the heavy
nmetals or other contam nants are contam nants
likely to have been in that water wthin that
(indisc.). ... There's lots of other sources for
) arsenic and ot her heavy mnerals and
(indisc.) actual ly; the natural seeping of
met hane t hr ough t he wat er system occurs
t hr oughout Cook I nl et j ust due to t he
hydr ol ogi cal conditions for the aquifers.

So, when you look at it, you really need the
baseline data to tell and to link it; ... unless
you have a unique geochem cal signature, I
significantly doubt that you could argue that's
100 percent sure that's comng from the coal bed
nmet hane, so base |evel data does make sense, and
that's exactly why you use sonething like that;
you pretest to get that baseline data. Whet her
or not you need to test all the wells again in
the area or whether just representative wells
that penetrate specific aquifers.

MR. MYERS said from the standpoint of a testing program
hydr ol ogi sts woul d t est representative wel |'s W th
representative distances in various aquifers prior to
[ exploration and production]. He explained that this
standard is stronger than that in which it requires all of
the wells to be tested. He noted that specific aquifers
woul d have to be tested in order to get the baseline data.
M. Mers said trying to retrospectively tie it to a unique
characteristic in the whole may or nmay not be the problem
A lot of the large contam nation occurs from nore shall ow
sources such as agricultural runoffs or from septic systens

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- April 7, 2004



that are inproperly designed or over used. He remarked,
"You'd have to be able separate out those sorts of
agreenents -- arsenic is not a problem in those types of
systens though.”" He said other cases could be a result of
a lot of contamnants but the hope is that the pretest
baseline data would provide that information. M. Mers
said the requirenent is general enough that regulations
woul d have to be witten to [specify] what is being tested,
and he anticipated that would be a part of the process.

Number 2748

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if [DNR] had considered going
into hones within a selected distance to test existing
wel I's for contam nation beforehand.

MR. MYERS commented he believes that is what the standard
does. He said it doesn't differentiate between wells at

the well site, but it's all water wells within a box that

approximately represents a quarter-mle radius around the
well site. Each honme with a well would have to be tested
within that radius prior to the withdrawal of water from
the potential coal bed zone, M. Mers explained. He
reiterated that he believes this standards does what

Representative Gatto is asking, and it does it not just for

representative water wells of honmeowners, but also for all

wat er wells.

Nunber 2812

M CHAEL O MEARA testified on HB 395. He told the nenbers
that he is concerned about the bill even though he does not
live within the | ease area. He commented that his property
could be at sone future tine. M. O Meara said he believes
there should be a buy-back of existing |eases because
anything that is attenpted without that provision is just a
cosnetic change. He told the nenbers that he had questions
based on the earlier version of the bill and asked if it
has been changed substantially since Monday.

CO CHAI R MASEK replied that have been several CS brought to
the commttee. The sponsor reviewed all the changes at the
begi nning of the neeting, she said. Co- Chair Masek asked
if M. O Meara needed to have the sponsor repeat the review
of the changes.

MR. O MEARA asked if there had been changes since Monday.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- April 7, 2004



CO CHAIR MASEK replied this is correct.

MR.  VANDERKOLK asked if M. O Mara was referring to
version N

MR. O MEARA responded that he does not have the bill in
hand, but said that nay well be the version.

MR, VANDERKOLK told M. O Meara that since Mnday there
have only been three changes. The first is a title change
whi ch makes it nore specific. The second includes a change

in language on page 5, line 19, which nakes the |anguage
very specific wth respect to water wel | testing
requirenents. It clarifies that the bill pertains to

production testing and production activities on the |ease,
as opposed to testing for any particular reason an agency
mght like to work on the surface. On page 7, line 17 and
21, it clarifies that the provision to pay the owner for
all damages is by the | essee, not the state.

TAPE 04-19, SIDE B
Number 2975

MR. O MEARA commented that he does not have a lot of faith
in the Alaska G| and Gas Conservation Comm ssion (AOGCC)
because sonme of the past nenbers' staff have been people
who have obvious political notivations and conflicts. He
said he doubts that forumw ||l provide the public with very
much. M. O Meara conplinented the commttee on elenents
of their work. He was happy that the 3,000-foot well depth
limtation was maintained. M. O Meara said he believes it
is good that the commttee is trying to refine |anguage in
Section 7, although sone of it is very difficult to
under st and. For exanple, he read the following from page
7, lines 6 and 7:

...reasonably necessary or convenient to render
beneficial and efficient the conplete enjoynent
of the property and the reserved rights;

MR. O MEARA said he hopes that it can be witten in plain
| anguage because not only does this confuse him but
suggested that later if there ever is a dispute the
attorneys will have a field day with that |[|anguage. He
enphasi zed that he thinks the concept is a good one.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- April 7, 2004



MR. O MEARA told the nmenbers that he believes another good
thing the conmttee is doing is overriding the provisions
of HB 69 which he believes was terrible |egislation.

MR. O MEARA commented that there are still a couple of
inportant elenents mssing from the |egislation. There
still is no provision for direct notice to property owners

in the |ease area, he said. M. O Mara told the nenbers
that he is disturbed by a requirenment for review by the
Al aska Coastal Zone Managenent Program

MR. VANDERKOLK responded to the point on public notice. He
suggest ed t hat M. O Mear a r ead Section 10, AS
38.05.945(b), which highlights how all pertinent parties
are to be notified. Wth several decades of using
conventional oil and gas leasing public notice, there wll
be a broad and useful way of notifying pertinent parties,
he conment ed.

MR O MEARA asked where to | ook.

MR. VANDERKOLK directed him to page 9, starting on line 6
through to the end of the section [on |ine 25]. There are
various nethods of communicating that |eases are being
proposed and awarded. He referred to AS 38.05.177(c) which
allows for a public forum to take place which is outlined
in Section 2.

MR. O MEARA pointed to page 9, line 11, which reads:

(i11) notification of parties known or likely to
be affected by the action; or

MR. O MEARA asked if that |anguage refers to individuals
who hold property within the | ease area.

MR. VANDERKOLK replied presumably so.

VR. O MEARA commented that he is troubled by the
"presumabl y" part of M. VanderKol k's answer. He said he
would like to see clearer |anguage that would put forth a
requi renent that individuals who own property in the area
to be | eased woul d be notified directly.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- April 7, 2004



MR. VANDERKOLK commented that since this is compn practice
out of current statute he said he believes M. Myers woul d
be useful in responding to the question.

Number 2712

MR. O MEARA commented that he lives in an area that has
been available for leasing a nunber of tines under the
areawi de plan, and that it is clear to himthat individuals
do not get the information that is needed under the current
pl an. He told the nenbers he believes this is an
opportunity for the commttee to take a hard look at this
and inprove it by providing for direct notification of
| andowner s.

CO CHAIR MASEK advised M. O Meara that another hearing on
the bill will be scheduled so he will have additional tine
to provide testinony.

Nunber 2664

MR. O MEARA urged the nenbers to take a closer |ook at the
basi¢c |l anguage in the property owners' bill of rights. He
said he believes this is very inportant and does not want
to see the legislature fail to pass substantive reform
| egi sl ati on.

Number 2553

JOHN NORMAN, Chairman, Alaska Ol and Gas Conservation
Comm ssion (AOGCC), testified on HB 395. He comented that
there is a qualification in the first page that sonme of the
speakers have expressed concern about. It relates to
production from an aquifer. There is a option that would
al l ow soneone to petition the AOGCC to nake a finding that
production from a well would not adversely affect the
aqui fer. M. Norman told the nenbers that it is believed
that this is an inmportant provision to have in the bill for
the state of Al aska. This should be an option if it can
"clearly" be shown that this is in an area where it wll
not in any way adversely affect an aquifer. He said he
knows that there are villages that are desperate for power
because they have diesel fuel at a high cost. If a village
had the option to produce fuel but it would have to be from
an aquifer and this bill would provide an option with a
public hearing and notice for decisions to be made, he
expl ai ned.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- April 7, 2004



MR. NORMAN said that he understands that the public has
concerns. As chairman of the AOGCC he stated that he
wanted it on the record that it is the responsibility of
the agency to protect fresh water in the course of oil and
gas production. The conmm ssion accepts that responsibility
and wi |l absolutely discharge it, he stated.

Nunber 2433
MR. NORMAN enphasi zed a positive aspect of the public forum
process which is on page 2, [lines 26 and 27,] which reads

as foll ows:

For any other nmatter, the comm ssion shall refer
the conplaint to other federal, state, or |ocal
agenci es, as appropri ate.

MR. NORMAN conmented that this |anguage when read wth

Section 15 of the bill, which is a repealer section, would
put nore global control into effect. The conm ssion sees
that as a positive aspect of the bill because it enpowers

| ocal property owners in having nore say-so in what occurs
in their areas.

MR. NORMAN referred to page 3, [lines 12 through 15,] which
read as foll ows:

(a) Except for activities governed by AS 38.05,
the developer shall give the surface owner
witten notice of the oil and gas operations
contenpl ated at |east 20 days before commencenent
of operations. The requirenent of witten notice
may be wai ved by the parties.

MR NORVMAN said in conjunction with that subsection he
pointed to page 4 [lines 10 through 12,] which reads as
fol |l ows:

(4) "oil and gas operations" neans the drilling
of an oil and gas well, the production and
conpl etion operations ensuing from the drilling,
and oi | and gas geophysi cal expl oration
activities that require entry upon the surface
est at e;

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- April 7, 2004



MR. NORMAN said that there should be a clear trigger of the
requirenent to give notice. He said he Dbelieves
"commencenent of operations” is clear, but when reading the
definition [of oil and gas operations] he asked if it neans

when drilling is commenced or again when production and
conpl etion operations are comenced. He questioned if this
is one notice [or many]. M. Norman offered to assist in

creating | anguage that would make the intent clear
Number 2325

MR. NORMAN said where the bill references the drilling of
oil and gas wells and ties it to an existing statute which
allows for cross enforcenent and very careful nonitoring of
every single well, the comm ssion suggests that the bill
use the follow ng | anguage:

...the drilling of a well requiring a permt
under AS 31.05. 090

MR. NORMAN told the nmenbers that this |anguage would pick
up all of these wells because the conmission is statutorily
required to track all wells.

MR. NORMAN pointed to page 3, subsection (c), which reads
as foll ows:

(c) If a developer fails to give notice as
provided in this section, the surface owner nmay
seek any appropriate relief in the court of
proper jurisdiction and nmay receive punitive and
actual damages.

MR. NORVAN commented that punitive damages are normally
awarded for sone sort of reckless conduct. He told the
menbers that he points this out because he believes it is
inportant that the statutes are very clear as to when
required notice is to be given since this could trigger not
only actual damages, but punitive damages as well. M.
Nor man enphasi zed that there should not be any gray area.

Number 2200

COCHAIR MASEK said for the record that Representative
Hei nze joined the neeting at 3 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- April 7, 2004



CO CHAIR MASEK suggested that M. VanderKolk work with M.
Norman and M. Meyer to address issues that were discussed.

MR. VANDERKOLK replied that he | ooks forward to doi ng so.

[HB 395 was held in conmttee.]
ADJ OQURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the

House Resources Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
2:15 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- April 7, 2004



